
 

 
 

PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD 
 

Date:- Thursday 24 February 
2022 

Venue:- Town Hall, The Crofts, 
Moorgate Street, Rotherham.  
S60 2TH 

Time:- 9.00 a.m.   
 

Meetings of the Planning Board can all be viewed by live webcast by following this link:- 
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 

AGENDA 
1. To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of any part of the agenda.  
 

  

2. To determine any items which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

  

3. Apologies for absence (substitution)  
 

  

4. Declarations of Interest (Page 4) 
 

 (A form is attached and spares will be available at the meeting) 
 

5. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 16th December, 2021 (Pages 5 - 7) 
 

  

6. Deferments/Site Visits (information attached) (Pages 8 - 9) 
 

  

7. Development Proposals (Pages 10 - 18) 
 

  

8. Updates  
 

  

9. Date of next meeting - Thursday, 17th March, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. at the Town 
Hall  
 

  

Membership of the Planning Board 2021/22:- 
 

Chair – Councillor Atkin 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Bird 

Councillors Bacon, Burnett, Cowan, Elliott, Fisher, Havard, Keenan, Lelliott, McNeely, 
Sansome, Tarmey, Tinsley and Wooding. 

 
 

 
 

 

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

 
Planning Regulatory Board 

‘Public Right To Speak’ 
 

 
REGISTERING TO SPEAK 

  
The Council has a “Right to Speak” policy, under which you may speak in the 
Planning Board meeting about an application. If you wish to do this, it is 
important that you complete a tear-off slip and return it with any written 
comments, within 21 days of the date of the notification letter back to the 
Planning Department.  
  
Your comments will be made known to the Planning Board when it considers 
the application and you will be written to advising of the date and time of the 
Planning Board meeting to exercise your right to speak  
  
 If you wish to speak in the meeting, please try to arrive at the venue ten 
minutes before the meeting starts. The reception staff will direct you to the 
Council Chamber. 
 
In the Council Chamber, please give your name to the Board clerk (who will 
have a checklist of names derived from the agenda). The clerk will direct you 
to the seating reserved for people who wish to speak. 
 
The agenda is available online at least 5 days prior to the meeting, and a few 
copies will be made available at the meeting, so you can read the report 
relating to the application which concerns you and see where it comes in the 
agenda. 
 
The Council Chamber is equipped with microphones and a hearing loop. 
 
Take time to familiarise yourself with the layout of the Chamber and the 
procedure of the meeting, before ‘your’ application is reached. 
 
Please note that applications can sometimes be withdrawn or deferred at 
short notice. The Council will do its best to notify the public in advance, 
but on occasions this may not be possible. 
  
The meeting is being filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
website and can be found at:-  
  
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
  
If anyone present or members of the public in the public galleries do not wish 
to have their image captured they should make themselves known to 
Democratic Services before the start of the meeting.  

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

 
  
  

YOUR RIGHT TO SPEAK 
  
The ‘right to speak’ applies equally to the applicant and to the general public.  
  
You will be invited to speak by the Chairman at the correct interval.  
  
Each speaker will be allowed three minutes to state his/her case.  The 
applicant does not have a “right to reply” to the objector(s) comments.  
  
Only planning related comments can be taken into consideration during the 
decision process.  
  

CONDUCT OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
  
Speakers should not be allowed to engage in discussion with members of the 
Committee during public speaking or the Committee deliberations, to avoid 
any risk of accusation of bias or personal interest.   
  
All attendees are reminded of the importance to remain calm, courteous and 
respectful during the meeting.  Please refrain from shouting out and allow 
people to speak.   Any person causing a disruption will be asked to leave the 
meeting. 
 



 

 
 

ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
 

MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

 
Your Name (Please PRINT):- 
 
 
Meeting at which declaration made:- 
 
 
Item/Application in which you have 
an interest:- 
 
 
Date of Meeting:- 
 
 
Time Meeting Started:- 
 
 

Please tick ( √ ) which type of interest you have in the appropriate box below:- 
 

 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary      
 
 
 
 

2. Personal  

 
 
 

Please give your reason(s) for you Declaring an Interest:- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N.B.  It is up to a Member to determine whether to make a Declaration.  However, if you should 
require any assistance, please consult the Legal Adviser or Governance Adviser prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 

     Signed:- …………………………..…………………………. 
 

(When you have completed this form, please hand it to the Governance Adviser.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Please continue overleaf if necessary) 

Page 4 Agenda Item 4



PLANNING BOARD - 16/12/21  
 

PLANNING BOARD 
16th December, 2021 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Atkin (in the Chair); Councillors Bird, A. Carter, Castledine-Dack, 
Cowen, Fisher, Havard, Keenan, Lelliott, McNeely, Sansome, Tinsley and Wooding. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Elliott and Wilson.  
 
The webcast of the Planning Meeting can be viewed at:-  
https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
65.  

  
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 There were no items on the agenda to warrant exclusion of the press and 
public. 
 

66.  
  
MATTERS OF URGENCY  
 

 There were no matters of urgency for consideration. 
 

67.  
  
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 There were no Declarations of Interest to report. 
 

68.  
  
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning 
Regulatory Board held on Thursday, 25th November, 2021, be approved 
as a correct record of the meeting. 
 

69.  
  
DEFERMENTS/SITE VISITS  
 

 There were no site visits or deferments recommended. 
 

70.  
  
DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS  
 

 Resolved:-  (1)  That, on the development proposals now considered, the 
requisite notices be issued and be made available on the Council’s 
website and that the time limits specified in Sections 91 and 92 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 apply. 
 
In accordance with the right to speak procedure, the following people 
attended the meeting and spoke about the following applications:- 
 
- Demolition of existing unlisted part converted barns and part built 

houses, conversion and extension of existing farmhouse to two 
dwellings and erection of 43 No. dwellinghouses at land at North 
Farm North Farm Close Harthill for Glen Saint and Newett Homes 
(RB2019/1474) 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5

https://rotherham.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 PLANNING BOARD - 16/12/21 
 

 
Ms. E. Lancaster (on behalf of the Applicant) 
A statement was read out on behalf of Harthill with Woodall Parish 
Council (Objector). 
A statement was read out on behalf of Mr. Rowland (Local Resident 
and Objector). 

 
- Erection of 10 No. dwellinghouses with associated parking at land 

east of Crane Drive/Welling Way, Kimberworth for Campbell Homes 
Limited (RB2021/1336) 

 
Mr. L. Watkins (Objector) 
Mr. J. Krot (Objector) 

 
(2)  That, with regards to application RB2019/1474:- 
 
(a)   subject to a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 for the purposes of securing the following:- 
 

 Eleven Affordable Housing Units on site. 

 A commuted sum of £22,500 towards sustainable travel 
encouragement.  

 A commuted sum of £94,537.50 towards secondary education 
provision at Wales High School . 

 Establishment of a Management Company to manage and maintain 
the areas of Greenspace on site and play equipment.     

 
(b) subject to the satisfactory securing of such an agreement, the Council 
resolves to grant planning permission for the proposed development 
subject to the reasons for grant and conditions listed in the submitted 
report. 
 
(3)  That, with regards to application RB2021/1336:- 
 
(a)   subject to a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 for the purposes of securing the following:- 
 

 One x three bedroom bungalow to be delivered on site as an 
affordable housing unit.  (Either plot 5 or plot 10)   

 A commuted sum of £43,503.80 towards affordable housing 
provision within the Borough  

 
(b) subject to the satisfactory securing of such an agreement, the Council 
resolves to grant planning permission for the proposed development 
subject to the reasons for grant and conditions listed in the submitted 
report. 
 

71.  
  
UPDATES  
 

 There were no updates to report. 

Page 6



PLANNING BOARD - 16/12/21  
 

 
72.  

  
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Planning Board take place on 
Thursday, 13th January, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. at Rotherham Town Hall. 
 

 

Page 7



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING BOARD 

 
 

DEFERMENTS 
 
 

 Planning applications which have been reported on the Planning Board 
Agenda should not be deferred on request without justification. 

 

 Justification for deferring a decision can arise from a number of matters:- 
 

(a) Members may require further information which has not previously 
been obtained. 

 
(b) Members may require further discussions between the applicant and 

officers over a specific issue. 
 

(c) Members may require a visit to the site. 
 

(d) Members may delegate to the Assistant Director of the Service the 
detailed wording of a reason for refusal or a planning condition. 

 
(e) Members may wish to ensure that an applicant or objector is not 

denied the opportunity to exercise the “Right to Speak”. 
 

 Any requests for deferments from Members must be justified in Planning 
terms and approved by the Board.  The reason for deferring must be 
clearly set out by the Proposing Member and be recorded in the minutes. 

 

 The Assistant Director of Planning, Regeneration and Transport or the 
applicant may also request the deferment of an application, which must 
be justified in planning terms and approved by the Board. 

Page 8 Agenda Item 6



SITE VISITS 

 

 Requests for the Planning Board to visit a site come from a variety of sources:- 
the applicant, objectors, the Parish Council, local Ward Councillors, Board 
Members or sometimes from the Assistant Director of Planning, Regeneration 
and Transport. 

 

 Site visits should only be considered necessary if the impact of the proposed 
development is difficult to assess from the application plans and supporting 
information provided with the officer’s written report; if the application is 
particularly contentious or the application has an element that cannot be 
adequately expressed in writing by the applicant or objector.  Site visits can 
cause delay and additional cost to a project or development and should only be 
used where fully justified. 

 

 The reasons why a site visit is called should be specified by the Board and 
recorded. 

 

 Normally the visit will be programmed by Democratic Services to precede the 
next Board meeting (i.e. within three weeks) to minimise any delay. 

 

 The visit will normally comprise of the Members of the Planning Board and 
appropriate officers.  Ward Members are notified of visits within their Ward. 

 

 All applicants and representees are notified of the date and approximate time of 
the visit.  As far as possible Members should keep to the schedule of visits set 
out by Committee Services on the Board meeting agenda. 

 

 Normally the visit will be accessed by coach.  Members and officers are 
required to observe the site directly when making the visit, although the item will 
be occasioned by a short presentation by officers as an introduction on the 
coach before alighting.  Ward Members present will be invited on the coach for 
this introduction. 

 

 On site the Chair and Vice-Chair will be made known to the applicant and 
representees and will lead the visit allowing questions, views and discussions.  
The applicant and representees are free to make points on the nature and 
impact of the development proposal as well as factual matters in relation to the 
site, however, the purpose of the visit is not to promote a full debate of all the 
issues involved with the application.  Members must conduct the visit as a group 
in a manner which is open, impartial and equitable and should endeavour to 
ensure that they hear all points made by the applicant and representees. 

 

 At the conclusion of the visit the Chair should explain the next steps.  The 
applicant and representees should be informed that the decision on the 
application will normally be made later that day at the Board meeting subject to 
the normal procedure and that they will be welcome to attend and exercise their 
“Right to Speak” as appropriate. 

Page 9



 
 
 
REPORT TO THE PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD TO BE HELD ON THE 
24 February 2022 
 
 
The following applications are submitted for your consideration. It is 
recommended that decisions under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 be 
recorded as indicated. 
 
INDEX PAGE 
 
 

RB2021/1330 
Erection of flue to rear roof slope at 22-24 Laughton Road 
Dinnington for Mr A Rafiq. 
 

 
Page 11 

 

Page 10 Agenda Item 7



REPORT TO THE PLANNING BOARD  
TO BE HELD ON THE 24 February 2022 
 
The following applications are submitted for your consideration. It is 
recommended that decisions under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 be 
recorded as indicated. 
 
 

Application 
Number 

RB2021/1330 https://rotherham.planportal.co.uk/?id=RB2021/1330 

Proposal and 
Location 

Erection of flue on rear roofslope at 22-24 Laughton Road, 
Dinnington 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 

 
 
This application is being presented to Planning Board due to the number of objections 
received. 
 

 
 
Site Description & Location 
 
The application site consists of the former HSBC bank on Laughton Road, Dinnington. 
The premises are located within Dinnington Conservation Area and Dinnington Town 
Centre. The building is an attractive half timbered building constructed in the early 20th 
Century. The surrounding area is commercial in nature with residential properties further 
to the south.  
 
Background 
 
The planning history of the site relates to its former use as a bank and is not relevant to 
this application.  
 
The premises were a former bank which up until 1 September 2020 would have been 
classed as a professional and financial services use class A2, restaurants fell within use 

Page 11

https://rotherham.planportal.co.uk/?id=RB2021/1330


class A3 within The Town and Country Planning Use Classes Order. Therefore, 
planning permission would have been required to change the use of the premises from 
a bank to a restaurant. However, the Order was amended and updated on 1 September 
2020 and now financial and professional services (including banks) and restaurants fall 
within the same use class E. Therefore, there is no material change of use of a former 
bank premises to a restaurant and planning permission is not required for the 
restaurant.   
 
Proposal 
 
The application seeks full planning permission for the installation of a flue pipe which 
forms part of an internal extraction system for cooking at the premises.  
 
The applicant has stated that the premises will be converted into a restaurant and the 
extraction system is required for this. As noted above, the conversion of the bank to the 
restaurant does not require planning permission in itself and the application is purely for 
the extract system. 
 
The application as originally submitted was for an external canopy extraction system. 
However, further to negotiations with the applicant this has been amended to locate the 
extraction system within the building with only the flue pipe external to the building, 
projecting through the rear roof slope to approximately the same height as the rood 
ridge.  
 
Development Plan Allocation and Policy 
 
The Core Strategy was adopted by the Council on the 10th September 2014 and forms 
part of Rotherham’s Local Plan together with the Sites and Policies Document which 
was adopted by the Council on the 27th June 2018. 
 
The application site is within an area identified for Retail Use in the Local Plan.  The site 
also falls within Dinnington Conservation Area. For the purposes of determining this 
application the following policies are considered to be of relevance: 
 
CS23 ‘Valuing the Historic Environment’ 
SP41 ‘Conservation Areas’ 
SP55 ‘Design Principles’ 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG). 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: The NPPF (as revised) sets out the Government’s 
planning policies for England and how these should be applied. It sits within the plan-led 
system, stating at paragraph 2 that: “Planning law requires that applications for planning 
permission be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise” and that it is “a material consideration in planning 
decisions”. 
 
Dinnington St John’s Neighbourhood Plan Adopted May 2021 
 

Page 12



The Local Plan Policies referred to above are consistent with the NPPF and have been 
given due weight in the determination of this application. 
 
Publicity 
 
The application as originally submitted has been advertised by way of press notice, site 
notice and individual letters to neighbouring properties. The Council has received five 
representations from local residents and neighbours, and from Dinnington Parish 
Council where five individual Parish Councillors raise objections to the proposal.  
 
The comments largely revolve around the use of the premises as a restaurant and 
takeaway and that it does not conform with the recently adopted Dinnington 
Neighbourhood Plan. However, these comments are not relevant to this application as it 
is purely for the proposed extraction flue only as planning permission is not required to 
convert the former bank into a restaurant. Any take-away element would be ancillary to 
the use of the premises as a restaurant and would not require planning permission. As 
such, the merits or otherwise of the use of the premises are not able to be considered 
as part of this application.   
 
The comments raised from neighbouring residents are summarised below:- 
 

 Concerns about the design of the proposed flue.  

 Concerns about cooking smells.  
 
Further publicity has more recently taken place relating to the amended plans for the 
extraction flue, no further comments have been received. 
 
Consultations 
 
RMBC - Transportation Infrastructure Service: No objections.  
 
RMBC- Environmental Health: Raise no objections subject to conditions relating to  the 
extraction and filtration system being adequately maintained throughout the lifetime of 
the development. The Environmental Health Officer also requested details of what 
additional odour mitigation is proposed at the site.   
 
Appraisal 
 
Where an application is made to a local planning authority for planning 
permission…..In dealing with such an application the authority shall have regard to - 
  
(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application,  
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and  
(c) any other material considerations. - S. 70 (2) TCPA ‘90. 
 
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be 
made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise - S.38 (6) PCPA 2004. 
 
The main considerations in the determination of the application are: 
 

 Principle of development 

Page 13



 Design and impact on Conservation Area 

 General amenity issues  

 Other issues raised by objectors 
 
Principle of development  
 
It is noted that this application has received a number of objections to the proposed use 
of the premises as a restaurant or takeaway. The applicant has confirmed that the 
premises will be used as a restaurant and not as a hot food takeaway. As noted above, 
this application is for the insertion of an extraction flue only and the use of the former 
bank as a restaurant cannot be considered as part of this application, as such a change 
of use does not require planning permission.  
 
As such, the installation of a flue on a restaurant is acceptable in principle and the 
application has to be determined on the basis of the appearance of the flue and any 
noise/odour impact it generates, and those alone. It cannot consider the merits or 
otherwise of the use of the premises as a restaurant, or related issues such as those 
raised by local residents and Dinnington Town Council including impacts of the use on 
Dinnington Town Centre, highways, litter and general noise and disturbance.  
 
Design, scale and appearance including impact on Dinnington Conservation Area 
 
With regards to the setting of the Dinnington Conservation Area, Section 69 of the 1990 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act, notes that a conservation area 
is an area of special architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of 
which it is desirable to preserve or enhance. Local Plan Policy CS23 ‘Valuing the 
Historic Environment’ states that: “Rotherham's historic environment will be conserved, 
enhanced and managed, in accordance with the principles set out below (which 
includes amongst other things that): d. Proposals will be supported which protect the 
heritage significance and setting of locally identified heritage assets such as buildings of 
local architectural or historic interest, locally important archaeological sites and parks 
and gardens of local interest.”  
 
Policy SP41 ‘Conservation Areas’ states that: “Development proposals within or likely to 
affect the setting of a Conservation Area will be considered against the following 
principles (amongst others) developments are required to ensure the preservation or 
enhancement of the special character or appearance of Rotherham’s Conservation 
Areas and their settings.” 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states at paragraph 189 that: “In 
determining applications, local planning authorities should require an applicant to 
describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any contribution 
made by their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’ 
importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the 
proposal on their significance. As a minimum the relevant historic environment record 
should have been consulted and the heritage assets assessed using appropriate 
expertise where necessary. Where a site on which development is proposed includes, 
or has the potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest, local 
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based 
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation.”  
 

Page 14



The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states at paragraph 190 that: “Local 
planning authorities should identify and assess the particular significance of any 
heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by development affecting 
the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any 
necessary expertise. They should take this into account when considering the impact of 
a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage 
asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.” 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) further states at paragraph 193: 
“When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a 
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation 
(and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or 
less than substantial harm to its significance.”  
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) further states at paragraph 195 that: 
“Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or total loss of 
significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse 
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is 
necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of 
the following apply:  
 
a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and  
b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term  
through appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and  
c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public  
ownership is demonstrably not possible; and  
d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.” 
 
In general design terms Local Plan Policy SP55 ‘Design Principles’ states: “All forms of 
development are required to be of high quality, incorporate inclusive design principles, 
create decent living and working environments, and positively contribute to the local 
character and distinctiveness of an area and the way it functions. This policy applies to 
all development proposals including alterations and extensions to existing buildings”. 
 
Policy CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’ indicates that proposals for development should 
respect and enhance the distinctive features of Rotherham.  They should develop a 
strong sense of place with a high quality of public realm and well-designed buildings 
within a clear framework of routes and spaces.  Development proposals should be 
responsive to their context and be visually attractive as a result of good architecture and 
appropriate landscaping.  Moreover it states design should take all opportunities to 
improve the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 
 
With regards to design it is noted that the proposals have been considerably amended 
to locate the majority of the extraction equipment within the building. Only an external 
flue pipe would be visible projecting out of the rear roof slope of the building.  
 
As such, the visual impact of the flue has been significantly improved and it is 
considered greatly reduces its visual impact.  
 
The flue pipe would be largely concealed from public views by the row of existing shops 
and it would not visible within the streetscene of Laughton Road. Though the flue pipe 

Page 15



would be visible from the rear, this forms part of the private rear yard area of the 
premises.  
 
From greater distance views from the rear, the flue pipe would be largely obscured by 
the presence of the Aldi supermarket and would not be easily visible from views into the 
Conservation Area from Middlefield Road.  
 
As such, it is considered that the visual impact of the flue pipe would be minimal and 
therefore that the development largely preserves the character and appearance of the 
Dinnington Conservation Area from all key views of the building.   
 
However, a condition is recommended that the flue pipe should be painted black to 
minimise visual impact.  
 
In conclusion, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in design and 
conservation terms, subject to the recommended conditions and fully accords with the 
aforementioned policies and guidance in relation to design and impact on the 
Dinnington Conservation Area.  
 
General amenity issues  
 
With regards to amenity it is noted that the main issues would be the noise and odours 
from the extract system. At this stage, the full details of what odour mitigation measures 
will be used are not known and a condition is recommended that requires such details 
to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any 
development commences, to ensure that a suitable system is subsequently installed. It 
is noted that there are residential properties to the south of the site on Medlock Court. 
However, it is considered that provided that the odour mitigation equipment is suitable it 
would not lead to harm to the amenity of these neighbouring residents. Furthermore, the 
submitted information has addressed concerns that the Environmental Health Officer 
had in terms of noise. As such, it is considered that the proposed system is acceptable 
in terms of noise and odour impact for local residents.  
 
Other issues raised by objectors 
 
As noted above, many of the issues raised by the objectors, such as the use of the 
premises as a restaurant or take-away and the impact on the Dinnington Town Centre 
or the associated impacts from any associated traffic movements, litter and general 
noise and amenity issues, other than those generated by the proposed flue itself which 
are discussed above. 
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion it is considered that the proposed flue is of an acceptable design and 
appearance and would have very little impact on the Dinnington Conservation Area or 
on residential amenity, subject to the recommended conditions.  
 
Conditions  
 
The Development Management Procedure Order 2015 requires that planning 
authorities provide written reasons in the decision notice for imposing planning 
conditions that require particular matters to be approved before development can start. 

Page 16



Condition number 4 of this permission requires matters to be approved before 
development works begin; however, in this instance the condition is justified because: 
 
i. In the interests of the expedient determination of the application it was considered to 
be appropriate to reserve certain matters of detail for approval by planning condition 
rather than unnecessarily extending the application determination process to allow 
these matters of detail to be addressed pre-determination. 
 
ii. The details required under condition number 4 are fundamental to the acceptability of 
the development and the nature of the further information required to satisfy this 
condition is such that it would be inappropriate to allow the development to proceed until 
the necessary approvals have been secured. 
 
01 
The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
02 
The permission hereby granted shall relate to the area shown outlined in red on the 
approved site plan and the development shall only take place in accordance with the 
submitted details and specifications as shown on the approved plans (as set out below) 
 
Drawing Number (Location Plan/Site Layout Plan/Site Plan)(Received 08/09/2021) 
Drawing Number, Ground Floor Plan/Dolphin/SB/004/RevA)(Received 17/09/2021)  
  
Reason 
To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.  
 
03 
The flue pipe hereby approved shall be painted black unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason 
In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with SP41 ‘Conservation Areas.’  
 
04 
Before the development is brought into use, the extraction system as specified in the 
Aval Odour assessment dated January 2022 shall be installed and operational. The 
kitchen extract system shall thereafter be retained, operated at all times during the 
preparation and cooking of food and maintained, all in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions and as detailed in the Dolphin Fabrications cleaning 
schedule provided by the applicant on the 1st February 2022.  
 
Reason 
In the interests of the amenity of nearby occupiers.  
 
05 
Before the development is brought into use, the Noise Mitigation Scheme detailed in 
section 4.1 of the Aval acoustic assessment dated January 2022 shall be installed and 

Page 17



fully operational. The kitchen extraction system including the noise mitigation system 
shall thereafter be retained, operated at all times during the preparation and cooking of 
food, and maintained, all in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions and 
cleaned as detailed in the Dolphin Fabrications cleaning schedule provided by the 
applicant on the 1st February 2022.  
 
Reason 
In the interests of the amenity of nearby occupiers.  
 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
During the determination of the application, the Local Planning Authority worked with 
the applicant to consider what amendments were necessary to make the scheme 
acceptable.  The applicant agreed to amend the scheme so that it was in accordance 
with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

Page 18


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 16th December, 2021
	6 Deferments/Site Visits (information attached)
	7 Development Proposals

